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Ovo Group Ltd
Stratégic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2017 -

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Introduction

" 0ovo grew out of the belief that there was a better way to sell energy. We set out to build a company people could trust; a

- company that would simplify buying energy and offer fair and transparent pricing, undelpmned by unrivaled customer -

service.

Our work is far from complete, but during the past eight years we have built a brand people value and trust. OVO.Group *
now has more than 1m customers, From humble beginnings in a barn in Gloucestershire we have become the UK’s largest

independent energy company.

" When OVO launched in 2009 it was unheard of for ene-rgy companies to offer fair pricing and a straightforward ‘customer
experience. Through these simple innovations we challenged the dominance of the Big Six and set the standard for new

entrants to the market. But being ‘better’ is no longer the differentiator it once was and customers now expect more value

from their energy company.

The energy industry also faces great changes, driven by the falling cost of renewables and increasing digitisation. As we look
forward to further advances in battery technology, the rise of connected devices and the electrification of heat and transport,
only companies that offer diversified, smart services will thrive. For this.reason we have continued to invest in the future

Smart homes

At OVQ we were quick to see the potential of smart energy services. We championed the smart meter rollout, setting up our
own Field Force team to take the OVO brand from the virtual to the physical as our highly-trained engineers to mstall smart
meters in customers® homes. More than 50% of our customers now have a smart meter.

Smart meters are a step on the path to an intelligent and sustainable energy network that will free us from our dependence on
fossil fuels. They enable the adoption of game-changing technologies that will transform the way we live and consume
energy. We will provide our customers with an effortless transition to smart homes, offering the installation, management
and maintenance of smart energy solutions including solar panels, smart boilers, smart thermostats and in-home batteries.

Following a series of investments in 2017 we have continued to invest in'our capabilities to deliver smart home services. In

Corgi Homeplan, and its network of 5,000 engineers, we offer boiler installations and smart heating systems to maintenance

and insurance plans.

" VCharge, our proprietary intelligent flexibility platform, connects to a range of devices (electric vehicles, batteries, heaters)
to buing flexibility to the energy system to help smooth peaks and troughs in energy pricing, prevenling customers
overpaying at times of high demand while helping to balance the grid at a local and national level.

VCharge uses a range ‘of real-time market signals, including commodity prices, weather data, local constraint and supply
demand balance information to determine the most appropriate action to take. It runs millions of calculations a day, with the
ability to instruct a change of state for any device within a second of making a decision, within current constraints. VCharge
optimises each asset individually in thls way, while also aggregating all assets to provide a portfolio level response to the
market.

The customer is ahways in the room

Today OVO is no longer simply an energy retail business: it is a group of dynamic companies that are hamessing

technological advances to offer exciting solutions to existing and future customers. We always ask ourselves what our
- customers value, and how technology can'meet their needs and expectations. Our evolution into a smart encrgy company is
ultimately about building lasting and trusted relationships by providing an excellent user experience,

We are not chasmg short-term returns. We want to build a better energy system aud deliver the biggest changes in energy
provision since the industrial revolution. .
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Ovo Group Ltd

Stratégic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Group Stra tégy

OVO’s strategy is to look beyond the traditional energy retail model and build a group of innovative companies that harness
technology to unlock long term value for customers, and ultimately fuel human progress by providing abundant clean energy
for everyone,

Smart Supply - Retail Energy

The g]obal energy market is movmg rapidly towards a new era of digitisation, and decentralised clean power generation
which will place more control in the hands of consumers. It means . that the opportunities to provide greater value to
. .customers - beyond simply supplymg kﬂowatt hours - have increased exponentlally, and that the energy retail market will
change beyond recognition. ‘

\

OVO has positioned itself at the forefront of this change and is well placed to capitalise on opportunities as the business
evolves from a top-rated energy retailer to a multi-service, multi-brand energy technology company.

As OVO changes, customers will increasingly beneﬁt froo new products and services that harness the dlsnuptnve powel of :
technology.

Intelligent trading

OVO Energy’s trading team has developed a number of tools in-house to purchase commodities as efficiently as possible
and reduce trading risks. This he[ps us to manage the 3.1 terrawatt hours of electricity and 8.9 terrawatt hours of gas OVO
Enen gy purchases every year, passing on savings from intelligent trading through reduced customer bills.

The proprietary dema.nd forecasting model combines regression and machine learning algorithms that analyse data on usage *
and weather patterns to calculate OVO Energy’s share of Elexon’s standard demand profile, all to a high degree of accuracy.
This tool is essential for avoiding volatile and potentially expensive ‘cash out’ penalties, minimising wholesale costs.

Mass penetration of smart meters and a move towatds half howrly settlement has considerably improved both the quantity

- and quality of data available to suppliers. OVO Energy now has accurate data of real-time usage, which creates a direct link
between the cost of supplying electuclty to a customer, and how and when they use it.

Smart Solutions - Energy Technolagy Pn oducts

In early 2018 the OVO Group unveiled three new products to realise the power of VChalge and facilitate our goal of
bringing clean energy to everyone.

Smart homes -THT and CORGI Homeplan

N
As the transition to a truly smart energy system gathers pace, customers will increasingly demand timely and tr usled access
to the technical hardware that will power the shift to a digitised future. :

OVO has long been at the vanguard of suppliers driving the installation of smart meters through its In Home Technology -
. (IHT) business. Those smart meters are the gateway to a range of products and services that will transform the energy system
in the future. THT installed 309,000 smalt meters in OVO customers’® homes in 2017. 50% of custoniers now benefit from

having a smart meter.

The increase in smart meter installation rates has been supported by the expansion of the OVO Field Force team of in-home
engineers, launched in 2015 and now totalling over 190, which consistently delivers leading levels of customer satisfaction.

Building on its acquisition in 20 17 the group has continued to invest in CORGI Homeplan, including the launch of CORGI
HomeHeat a heating system installation business. Founded in 2011, CORGI Homeplan is the UK’s third largest home
services provider with approximately 160,000 customers across the UK. .

In addition to providing insurance services, CORGI Homeplan operates a proprietary technology platform supporting a
network of 5,000 independent engineers across the UK providing installation and home emergency servicing.
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Ovo Gronp Ltd

* Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Smart ideas - OVO Foundation

OVO Foindation was created in 2014 with the mission of supporling inspiring organisations with smart ideas to give young
people across the-world a Detter and brighter future, OVO Foundation develops. projects in (hwee programme aveas: enetgy
.and the environment, youth poverty and education.

OVO Foundation is funded partly ﬁ'ém customer donations, and partly from the OVO business: at the end of 2017, 81,000
customers donated to OVO Foundation each month.

n

ICey Financial and Performance Indicators

]

The group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:’

. ~ Unit 2017 2016
Customer numbers ‘ o LN . . No. 935,000 . 676,060
Cash . £'000 78,177 66,930
Annualised gross profit margin (befoxe unrealised derivative gains/losses) ' % - 17.5 44
PBT&NAC : : £000 16,287 35,008

*¥PBT&NAC is defined as Profit before Tax before Net Acqulsillon Costs, representing those costs resulting fron
growing OVO’s customer base.

Recanciliation to Statutory Results . ' 2047 2016

‘ : ‘ £000  £000
PBT&NAC T 16287 35,008
Net Acquisition Costs ' (10213)  (11,196)

Profit Before Tax . 6,074 23,812

Principal visks and uncevtaiuties
The principal risks and uncertainties impacting the Gzoup relate to the wholesale price of gas and electricity and had debt
visk. . N .

The Group managés commodity price risk by securing gas and electricity under forward contracts-and by supplying the
majority of customers on fixed price contracts. As a result of rapid and sustained customer growth, Ovo signed anew trading
aud credit agreement with Shell ple in Noveraber 2014 to secure its future supply needs. The agreement gives the Group
access to new products and improved working capital terms.

The Group mitigates bad debt risk by askil ng credit customers to pay by direct debit a month in advance of usage, which also
ensures Ovo has the purchasing power ta offer more compeltitive (aiffs. In addition, customers are awatded up to 5% Ovo
interest on credit balances. For non-credil customers, prepayment and smart meters ave installed or a security dcposnt is taken
to avoid bad debl risk. Where debt becomes overdue, a full Dunning cycle and debt collection pracess is tun by the
Collections (eann .

.

Approved by the Board on 28 June 2018 and signed on its behaif by:

- L | ‘

sy FOITTTT I T I LT IS TTIRT eIy

Vincent Casey
. Director
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Ovo Group Ltd '

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors' of the group A .
The directors of the company who were in ofﬁce during the year and up to the date of sxgnmg the financial statements wexe

Stephen Fitzpatrick

Stephen Murphy - Chairman

Christopher Houghton

. Sophie Fitzpatrick

Sarah Calcott (resigned 20 March 20]7)

Daniel Sasaki

Niall Wass A

Jonathan Owen (resigned 25 January 2018)

The following director was appointed after the year end:
Vincent Casev (eppointed 8 June 2018)

‘Dividends
The Directors do not plopose a dividend for the year (2016: no dmdcnds proposed).

Financial instruments : :

Financial risk management objectives and policies have been establistied making use of financial instruments for the purpose
of managing the exposure of the company to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk is discussed in Note 27 of
the financial statements. .

Charitable donations :
Durmg the year the company made charitable donations of £867, 000, Individual donahons were:

£
OVO Charitable Foundation Limited - i S 867,000

Employment of disabled persons

One of the Group's core values is treating people fairly, giving equal opportumtles to all employees and appllcants The
Group ensures all employees get the same chances for training, development and career progression depending on their
performance, including any disabled employees. If an employee becomes disabled whilst in employment, the Group will
make every effort to give the employee suitable responsibilities with reasonable adjustments in their current role, in fine with
the Equality Act 2010. Where this isn’t possible, the Gloup will try to find the employee another role within Ovo and
provide additional training (as necessary). _ . .
Employee involvement

The Group is actively encouraging employee involvement throughout the or gamsatlon The Group holds legulal company
wide briefings where the latest information is shared, including financial and economic factoys that affect the performance of
the Group. Employee performance and development is reviewed on a quarterly basis and ensured it is in line with the overall
Group's objectives. The Group's employee forum and social committee is chaired by its employees for its employees Ovo
Group Ltd also introduced a new share scheme for employees in tlle prior year.

Future developments :

The Directors believe that the Company remains well positioned in the market place with a dlffelenuated offer. For further
information, visit our website: www.ovoenergy.com. See Strategic Report for the Company's future developments.

Research and development !
The Company continues to develop its IT infrastructure, investing £2.9m in software development and licences for the year
to 31 December 2017 (2016: £7.6m). The Company incurred costs of £489,000 (2016:£nil) engaging in research during the
yea. . .. . .
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Ovo Group Ltd

Dlrectors' Repm t for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Going concern
- Whilst the Group has net liabilities, it made a profit in the yem ended 31 December 2017, and expects to make profits i in the
future, Thercfore, the financial statements have been plepared on a going concetn basns.

The Group meets its day-to-day wmkmg capital tequnemems through cash reserves and the Shell facility. The auangement
enables OVO to purchase commodity in advance in the forward markets, providing a hedge against its commitments to
customers, The Company's forecasis and projections, taking into account of reasonably poss1ble changes in trading
performance; show that the Company should e able to operate within the level of its curtent facilities. The divectors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company,has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. The Company therefore, continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

Directors' liabilities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third party
indemnily provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout last
financial year and is currently in force, The Comipany also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year Directors'
and Officers' liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors. .

Statement of Directors' Responsibilitics ’
The directors are nesponsﬂ)le for preparing the Annual Report aud the financial statements m accordance wl(h apphcable law
and regulation.’

. Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the Buropean Union and company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

. (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law Lhe divectors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit
or loss of the group and company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors ave required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

T state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Ruropean Union have been followed for the group financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the company financial
stateiments, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; .

. * - make judgements and accounting estimales that are reasonable z\nd prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the oomg concern basis unless it is inapprapriate o presume that the group
and company will continue in businéss.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suftncnem to show and explain lhe group and
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company

“and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 ot the TAS Regulauon

The directors are also responsible for safeguat’ding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

Statement of disclosurc of information to auditors

. In'the case of each director in ofﬁée at the date the Directars® Report is approved:

. $o fur as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which thc gnoup and company’s auditors
are unaware; and . :
. : they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to niake themselves awiu‘epf any

relevant audit information and to establish that the group and company’s auditors are aware of thal information.

Approved by the Board on 28 June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Vincent Casey
Director

’ o . Pageé
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Ovo Group'Ltd

‘Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Ovo Group Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Ovo Group Ltd’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of the group’s
profit and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the.company’s firancial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and ’

« have been prepzu:ed in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December
2017; the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
and Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a deseription of the significant accounting policies.

/

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit.in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and applicable law.’
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our yeport. We bclleve that the audit ewdence we have obtained is suﬁ' cient and appropriate to, provide
a basts for our opinion.

Jndepena’ence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

" -financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulﬁlled our other ethical

rcsponsnbllltles in accordance with these requuements

. Conclusions lelatmg to gomg concern

We have nothing to report in lespect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) lequlre us to report to you

when:

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or :

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at
feast twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

‘

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predlcted this statement isnota gual antee as to the group’s and
company’ s ability to contmue as a going concern.
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Ovo Group Ltd

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Ovo Group Ltd

Reporting on other information

"The other information comprises all of the information -in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements doés

~ not cover the other information and, actordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this repmt any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in .

. the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a materid] misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these 1espon81b11|t1es .

Wlth respect to the Strategic Report and Directors® Report, we also considered whethel the dlsclosutes lequued by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based 'on the 1e3ponsnbxhnes described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audlt ISAs (UK) 1equue us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and

Directors” Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 is consistent w1th the financial statements and has been prepared in

accordance with apphcable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and uaderstanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Requnsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for bemg satisfied that they give a
truc and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary t6 enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible. for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease oper, ations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ )esponszbllmes for the-audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from mater lal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, lhey could reasonably be expected to influence the ecoromic decisions of users, taken on the basis of
these financial stateménts.

A further description of our responsibilities ‘for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
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Ovo Gfoup Ltd
Independent Audltor s Report to the Members of Ovo Group Ltd

Use of this reporl -

This repoﬁ, including the opinions, has been prepared-for and only for the company’s members as a body in'accordan_ce with

- Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or

assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom thisreport is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. .
Other required r'eportingi '

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in ‘our opinion:

T ewe have not received ail the information and explanations-we require for our audit; or

* adequate accountlng records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been recelved
from branches not visited by us; or

* certain dlsclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or -
+ the company financial statéments are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ariéing from this responsibility.

Katharine Fum (Senior Statutory Audxtor)
" For and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Statutory Auditor

* 2 Glass Wharf

Bristol - L N S
BS2 OFR o . L : ,

28 June 2018
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Ovo Group Ltd

Consolidated Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Revenue

Cost of sales

~ Gross ;)roﬁt ‘

: Administrative expenses
Other gainé .

Operating profit
Finance incomne
Finance costs

Net finance (cost)/income
Profit before tax

Income tax (ex’pense)/recei[;;t
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

‘Ownérs of the parent

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

There are no items of other comprehensive income within the current or prior year.

* Note

11

2017 £ 2016
£000 £000
833,575 716,980
(687,972) (613,784)
145,603 103,196
(137,969) (117,789)

- 38,246
7,634 23,653

8 159
(1,568) -
(1,560) 159
6,074 23,812
(1,338) 1,754
4,736 25,566
4,736 25,566

N;l‘he notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Régistration number: 08862063)

Ovo Group Ltd

Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December. 2017

‘Assets

Non-current assets

Propetty, plant and equipment -
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Investments

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other recejvables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

"Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings
Income tax liability
Deferred income
Provisions

Non-current liabilities

* Loans and borrowings
. Other non-current financial liabilities

Total liabilities

‘Net assets/(] iabilities)

Equity

Share premivm

Foreign currency translation reserve
Other reserves

Note

12
13
11
14

16
17

21

25

21

Accumulated losses/(Retainéd earnings)

Equity attributable to owners of the
parent '

Total equity

Y

Group Groitp Company’ Company
2017 2016 2017 " 2016
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
3,001 4,436 - .
83,324 19,026 - -
7,979 14,130 - 285
200 - 86,334 85,716
94,504 37,592 86,334 86,001 -
7,325 4,702 - -
- 68,973 57,794 56,233 18,935
78,177 66,930 2,310 5,800
154,475 129,426 58,543 24,735
248,979 167,018 144,877 110,736
(141,946) (97,779) (33,060) 29)
(50) - - -
(138) - - -
(71,682) (74,950) - -
(740) (551) - -
(214,556) (173,280) (33,060) 9)
(32,949) (101) - -
(5,000) . (2,786) - -
(37,949) (2,887) - -
(252,505) (176,167) (33,060 (29)
(3,526) (9,149) 111,817 110,707
28,710 28,710 30,663 30,663
258 ®) - .
1,629 1,008 79,744 79,126
(34,123) (38,859) 1,410 918
(3,526) (9,149) 111,817 . 110,707
(3,526) (9,149) 111,817 110,707

No income statement is presented for the company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The company
made a profit for the financial year of £492,000 (2016 - £1,902,000).

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financia
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Ovo Group Ltd

: (Reglstratxon number: 08862063)
Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017 -

58

Approved by the Board on 28 June 2018 and sigﬁed on its behalf by: o . !

.........................................

Vincent Casey . -
Director .

. The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Page 12
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" Ovo Group Ltd

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016

Piofit for the year

New share capital subscribed
Share based payment transactions

Movement in foreign currency
translation reserve

At 31 December 2016

At 1 Tanuary 2017
Profit for the year
Share based payment transactions

Movement in foreign currency
translation reserve

At 31 December 2017

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integial part of these financial statements.

Page 13

Foreign Share.based .
Share currency payments Accumulated .
. premium translation reserve . losses Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000
28,655 - 490 (64,425) (35,280)
T - - 25,566 - 25,566
55 - - - 55
- - 518 0 - 518
- ® - - ®)
28,710 ®) 1,008 (38,859) (9,149)
Foreign Share based
Share currency payments Accumulated
premium - translation reserve losses Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
28,710 ©@8) 1,008 (38,859) * (9,149)
. - - 4,736 4,136
- - T o621 . - 621
: - 266 - - 266 .
28,710 258 1,629 | (34,123)

(3,526)




- Company Statement of Changes in Eqﬁity for the Ye

At 1 January 2016

Profit for the year

New share capital subscribed
Share based payment transactions

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2017
Profit for the year
Share based payment transactions

At 31 December 2017 »

Ovo Group Ltd

.

ar Ended 31 Deqembef 2017

(Accumulated
Merger & other losses)/Retained
Share premium reserves earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
30,608 78,608 (984) 108,232
- - - 1,902 1,902 -
55 - - " 55
- 518 - 518
30,663 79,126 918 110,707
Merger & Other Retained
Share premium reserves earnings Total ‘
£000 £000 , £000 £ 000
30,663 79,126 918 110,707
- - 492 492
- 618 ‘- 618
30,663 79,744 1,410 111,817

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ovo Group Ltd

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year .
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation

Profit from disposals of investments

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Finance income

Finance costs .

Share based payment transactions

Income tax expense/(receipt)

Working capital adjustments.
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions 4
Decrease in deferred income

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from ‘operatin'g activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Acquisitions of property plant and equi_prhcnt
Acquisition of intangible assets -

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
. Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities'

Interest paid '

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs
Proceeds from bank borrowing draw downs

Net cash flows generated from financing activitiés
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalenté at 31 December

Note

~N NN Oy

16

17
19
25

13
14

2017 2016
<£000 £000 -
4,736 25,566
10,798 10,554
: - (38,246)

3 3
8) ' (159
1568 -
621 518
1,338 (1,754)
19,050 . (3,518)
(2,623) (4,553)
(10,702) (16,668)
40,411 32,528
189 178
(3,268) (13,195) .
43,057 - (5,228)
8 159
(1,628) (9,861)
(,867) (7,576)
(58,602) (99)
- 38,187
(63,089) 120,810
(1,568) ° -
- 46
32,847 -
31,279 46
11,247 15,628
66,930 51,302
78,177 - 66,930

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ovo Group Ltd

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 D_ééember 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items
Foreign exchange loss '
Finance income
Finance costs
. Income tax expense/(receipt)
' A |

Working capital adjustments
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs

‘Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note

11

17

19

2017

2016
£000 £000
492 1,902
58 : -
(2,109) 11,637)
681 : :
285 (285)

(593) 20) |
(37,356) “(184)
33,031 (746)
-(4,918) (950)
2,109 1,637
(681) .
. " 55
(681) 55
(3,490) 742
5,800 5,058
2,310 5,800

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

1 General information )
The compauy is a private company limited by share ca;;ital, incorporated and domiciled in UK.

The address of its leglstcted office is:
1 Rivergate

Temple Quay

Bfistol

BS1 6ED

UK

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 28 june 2018.

2° Accountmg pohcles

Summary of s:gmfcant accounting pohctes and key accounting estimates .
The principal accounting policies applied in the 'preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

)

Basis of preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of ﬂnan01al assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
pmﬁl or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas. where assumptions and estimates are Significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed at the end of this note.

Items included in\the financial statements are measured using the currency of the pri imauy -economic environment in which
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in ‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), w]nch is the
Group’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Going concern :

Whilst the Group has net liabilities, it made a profit in the year ended 31 December 2017, and expects to make profits in the
future. Therefore, the financial statements bave been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group meets its day-to-day
working capital requirements through cash reserves and the Shell facility. The arrangement enables OVO to purchase
commodity in advance in the forward markets, providing a hedge against its commitments to customers. The. Shell
commodity purchasing arrangement gives rise to a variable liability to Shell which is a combination of accounts payable and
future purchase commitments secured on some the cash of Ovo Energy Ltd '

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the
Group should be able to operate within the level of its cutrent cash reserves and facilities. The directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group
thercfore, continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. .

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements consolidate the ﬁnanclal statements of the company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up
~ to 31 December 2017.
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Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended .31 December 2017

2 Accounting policies (continued) A : . v

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is achieved where the company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. ’

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are inchuded in the income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to' the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the group.

The purchasé method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the aaquisition of subsidiaries
by the group. The cost of a business combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingerit liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially -

at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised is mcorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactlons between the company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties, are elumnated in full,

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure corsistency with the policies adopted by

the group. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s - A

equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the non-contloll'mg shareholder’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Total
comprehensive income 1s attributed to non—contlollmg interests even if thls results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. .

Revenue recognition - .

Revenue arises from the supply of gas and electricity and related services; amounts are derived from. provision of goods and
services that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group. Revenue is recognised net of value added tax (VAT) and climate
change levy' (CCL).

Revenue from the supply of gas and electricity is a function of end nser consumption (according to industry settlement data)
and tariff rates (specified by contract terms) net of supplies that are not billable. Revenue is recognised net of sales discounts.

Accrued revenue, représenting gas and electricity supplie.d since the last billing date, is recognised in the balance sheet and is

netted off against deferred income to the extent it can be matched against specific customer payments.

Revenue also arises from the installation of smart meters. Revenue is rccogmsed upon the date of installation and net of °

value added tax (VAT).

Finally, revenue also avises from the retailing of 'home services' such as gas boiler, central heating and electrical and
plumbing maintenance plans. Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services ae rendered, by
reference to stage of. complcnon of the specific transaction and assessed on the basis of the actual service pmvnded as a
pr opomon of the total services to be provided. .

All revenue arose within the United Kingdom.

Finance income and costs pohcy

Financing expense compuses interest payable on loans and is recognised in profit or loss using the effective ifterest method.
Financing income comprises interest receivable on funds invested and on loans to group undertakings.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend

income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is established. Fonelgn
cunency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. .
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Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31_December 2017

-

~ 2 Accounting policies (coﬁtinued)

Foreign currency transactions and financial statements of foreign operations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the respective functional
currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on the reporting period date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are.
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates pxevmlmg on the initial transaction dates.

Non-monetary items measmed in terms of histor 1cal cost in a foreign curr ency are not retranslated.
The assets and liabilitie’s of foreign operatfons_ are, translated into sterl'mg at exchange rates ruling at the bafance sheet date.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into stelling at rates approximating to the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising. on 1et|anslat10n of foreign operations are

1ecogmsed in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Tax . . . . .

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in pxoﬁt or loss, except that a
change attributable to an item of income or expense 1ecogmsed as other compnehenstve income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income,

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the countnes where the group operates and generates taxable i mcome

- Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrymg amounts of assets and habllmes for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences

are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect

neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The '
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying

amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. g '

Property, plant and equipment

" Property, plant and equipment is- stated in the statement of ﬁnancxal posmon at cost, less any subsequent accumulated

deprccnatlon and subsequent accumulated impairment losscs . .

The cost of property, plant and equipment mcludes directly attributable incremental costs mcuued in their acquisition and
installation.

.

Depreciation .
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and pxopemes under constt uction over their
estimated useful hves as follows: .

" Asset class ' . S Depreciation method and rate .
" Leasehold propesty . . _ Period of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment - . : - 3 years straight line
IT hardware equipment ‘ . . ) 3 years straight fine

~ Meter assets . o 10 years straight line
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Ovo.Group Ltd
‘ " Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 ‘Decemb'er 2017 :

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill A
Goodwill arises on business combinations and represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Where the fair value of the Group's

share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity is greater than the cost of

acquisition, the excess is immediately recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill is recognised as an asset at cost and is tested at"least annually for impairment. If an impairment is identified, the
carrying value of the goodwill is written down immediateley through the income statement and is not sugsequently reversed.
At the date of disposal of a subsidiary, the carrying value of attributable goodw1l| is included in the calculation of profit and
loss on disposal.

Intangible assets ’ ’
a), Trademarks and licenses

Separately acquired trademarks and licenses are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and licenses have a finite useful life- and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. . '

b) Computel soﬁwale a.ud licenses

Acquned computel software and licences are capltahsed on the basis of the costs incurred to acquitre and bring to use the -

specific software.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are diréctly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria-are met:

-itis techmcally feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate-technical, financial and other resources to complcte the development ahd to use or sell the soﬁwale are avallable
and

- the expendlturc attnbutable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capnahsed as part of the software pnoduct include the soﬁwale development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant attributable overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequenl period.

Computer software and licences acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation : : ‘ : .

Amortisation is provided on mtanglble assets, other than goodw:ll s0 as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual
value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class : . Amaortisation method and rate
.Other intangible assets ' ' 3 years straight ling

IT software and internally developed software costs ’ i 3 years straight line

Trade names. . 10 years stnalght line
Contractual customer relationships ' 10 years stratght line -
Engineer network . ‘ ) : .. 10 yeals straight line
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Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 i)eéember 2017

2 Accounting policies (continued)

" Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost, less any impairment. ‘
Interest income on debt secuuties where applicable, is 1ecogmsed in income using the effective mtenest method. Dividends
on equity securities are recogmsed in income-when receivable. :

Cash and cash equwalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-teim highly liquid mvestments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. .
Trade recewab]es

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal opelatmg cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade 1eceivables are recogmsed mmaily at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amomsed cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective ev1dence that the group will not be able to collect.all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. .

Inventones ’ '

Under the provisions of the Utilities Act 2000, all electricity supplleis are required to procure a set percentage of their
“supplies from accredited renewable electricity generators. This obligation can be fulfilled by the purchase and surrender of
Renewables Obligation Certificates (ROCs) originally issued to generators, or, by making payment to Ofgern who then
recycle the payments to purchasers of ROCs. In addition to the regulatory requirements, the Group surrenders additional
ROCs to demonstrate its environmental credentials transparently. The accounting policy distinguishes between the cost of
the Group’s obligations within the regulatory regime and the tactical disposition towards purchasing and holding ROCs. The
cost obligation is recognised as it arises and is charged to the income statement for the year to which the charge relates as a
reduction in gross margin. Gains or losses on disposal of ROCs are included in the income statemcnt as and when they
crystallize. The stock of ROCs carried forward is valued at the lower-of cost and estimated’ net realisable value. Cost is based
oh the first-in fust-oul principle.

Smart meter invcntoxy is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined uéing the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling puce in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
" expenses.

Trade payahies

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquued in the ondmaiy course of busnuess ﬁom
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current [iabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. '

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequcntiy measured at amortised cost using the

“effective interest method.,
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Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2017 .

2 " Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially recorded at the amount ‘of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transagction costs, and the amount
due on redemption being recogniscd as a charge to the income statement over the period of the relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recogni_sed on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.
Borrowings are classified as S current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

-Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In thig case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capltahsed as’'a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amomsed over the per 1od of the facility to which it relates.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised’ when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation a.ud a 1ehable estimate can be made of the athount of the
obligation. - : -

Provnslons are measured at the directors® best estimate of the expenditure 1equued to settle lhe obligation at the reporting
.date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Leases

Leases in'which substantially afl-the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.- Payments made under operating leases are changed to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Employee benefits . . .
The Company operates a flexible benefit scheme fon quallfymg employees whereby in addition to their salary, those

employees are invited to select certain benefits with a value of up to 4% of their base pay. All costs related to the scheme are |

expensed in the income statement in the years which. services are rendered by employees. One of the available benefits is
payment to a defined contribution pension plan. This is a post-employment benefit plan under which .the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will-have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The
Company has enrolled in the automatic pension scheme since November 2013. )

A liability is recognised for the amount expected t6 be paid under short-term cash bonus or ploﬁt-shaung plans if the

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service p10v1ded by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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(')v,o Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year‘ Elided 31 December 2017

f ‘ - .
2 Accounting policies (continued) '

Share based payments
Ovo Gloup Ltd operates a number of equity-settled, share based compensatmn plans, “under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of Ovo Group Ltd. The faii value of the employee

- services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is

deteunmed by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

- including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share pr xce),

- excludmg the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, sales growth tangets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting peuod which is the period over which all of the spectﬁed vestmg
conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore, the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense duung the peuod between service commencement period

and grant date.

v :
At the end of each reporting period, Ovo Group Ltd revises their estimates of the number of options that are expecte/d to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. They recognise the impact of the revision to original estimates, lf any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, Ovo Group Ltd issue new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium. -

The grant by Ovo Group Ltd of options over their equity instruments to the employees of ‘subsidiary undertakings in the
Group (such as to employees of Ovo Energy Ltd) is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of- employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is Jecogmsed over the vesting period as an increasc - to
investment in subS|d1a1y undextakmgs with a couespondmg cr edlt to equity in the parent entity accounts.

The social security contributions payable in connection with the glant of the share options is considered an integral part of
the grant itself, and the charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

- Financial assets

Classification

. The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,

and available for sale. The classification depends on the purposc for which the financial assets were acquned Management
determines the claSSLﬁcatlon of its financial assets at initial recognition. : -

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through,profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
‘category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling.in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-current. . '

(b) Loans and receivables

Loauns and receivables are non-derivative financial assets. with fmed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’sloans and receivables comprise” ‘trade and other
receivables’and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet. .
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Ovo Group Ltd

N dtes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December. 2017

N

2 Accounting policies (continued).

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date; the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction’ costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initiatly recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially ali
risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at arortised cost using the effective interest:
method. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™
category are presented in the income statement within ‘Cost of sales’ in the period in which they arise, .

Impairment ' >
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has-an impact on the estimated futuxe cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estirhated. -

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors ot a group of debtors is experiencing significant financiat
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 1ulu1e cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference‘between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
1ecogmsed in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
~ the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an mstlument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is.recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of.non-financial assets -

Intarigible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested an.nually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amoitisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying' amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
- lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash flows (cash-generating units). Puon impairments of non-financial |
assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed fox possible reversal at each reporting date.

Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities are classified as either fiancial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Decembef 2017

2 Accounling policies (continued)

: Fmancml liabilities at FVTPL

. Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent con51denatlon that may be paid by

an acquirer as part of a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading, or (m) it is desngnated as at
FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired pri.ncipally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or-

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified finncial mstruments that the group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in pxoﬁt or ldss incorporates any interest paid on the fmancml liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the profit and loss account.

Other financial liabilities
Other ﬁnanc1al liabilities, including borrowings, are mmally measured at fair value, net of tnansactlon costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the effective interest method with mtexest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability or, where applopuate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

~ recognition.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan undel which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entnty and the
Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. .

" For defined contribution plans contributions arc paid publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a

mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Derivatives and hedging .
The Company uses commaodity purchase contracts 'to hedge its exposmes to fluctuations in gas and electricity commod1ty
prices. When commodity pu1chase contracts have been entered into as part of the Company’s normal busiuess acuvxty, the
Company classifies them as ‘own use’ contracts and outside the scope of IAS 39. .
This is achieved when:

- A physical delivery takes place under ail such contracts; .

- The volumes purchased or sold under the contracts corresponds to the Company s operating 1equuements and

" - The contracts are not considered as written options as defined by the standard.”

.

Commodity purchase‘contracts not qualifying as ‘own use’ which also meet the definition of a derivative are within the
scope of IAS 39 as derivative financial instruments. This includes,both financial and non-financial contracts.

Derivatives and other financial instruments are measured at fair value on the contract date and are re-measured to fair value

at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments are recoguised in the
income statement as they arise.
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2 Accounting policies (continued) .

Challlges in accounting policy :
None of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from I January 2017 have had a material
effect on the financial statements.

New standards, interpretatioxis and amendments not yet effective )
The following newly issued but not yet effective standards, interpretations and amendments, which have not been applied in
these financial statements, will or may have an effect on the company financial statements in future:

IFRS 9

TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recogaition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS
"9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost; fair value through other comprehensive income; and fair value through pmﬁt or loss.

The basis of classification depends on thc entlty s business mode! and the contractual cash flow chaxacteustxcs of the
financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, not recycling. An expected
credit losses model replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities, there are no
changes to classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other compreheansive
income, for liabilities de31gnated at fair value through profit or loss.

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright-line hedge effectlveness tests. To qualify for
hedge accounting, it requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument, and for the *hedged
ratio’ to be the same as the one that management actually-uses for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is stilf requiled but it is different from that cuhently prepared under TAS 39. There is an accounting policy
choice to continue to account for all hedges under JAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for accouating periods begmnmg on or after 1
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. '

The"group is working towards the implementation of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, Based on a high leve! review it anticipates
that the classification and measurement basis for its financial assets and liabilities will be largely unchanged by adoption of
IFRS 9, and expects to take the accounting policy”choice to continue to account for all hedges under IAS 39. The main
impact of adopting IFRS 9 is likely to arise from the implementation of the expected loss model. Currently the impact on -
accumulated losses / profit for future periods is not expected to be material. ’ .

IFRS 15

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers®, deals with revenuc recognition and establishies principles for reporting * .
uscful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ablhty to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. Vatiable consideration is
included in the transaction price if it is highly probable that there will be no significant 1evexsal of the cumulative revenue
recognised when the uncertainty is resolved.

The standard Jeplaces TAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and 1e1atcd interpretations. The standald is
effective for annual periods begmnmg on or after 1 Januazy 2018, and earlier apphcatzon is permmed

The group is working towards the implementation of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and has cartied out a high level review of
existing contractual arrangements as part of this process. The directors currently anticipate there will be no material impact
for the cnergy retail, smart meter installation or the sale of home and emergency cover revenue streams.

.
;
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-2 Accounting policies {(continued)

IFRS 16

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases, and it establishes principles
for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key
change-arising from IFRS 16 is that most oper ating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for lessees.

. The standard replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’, and related interpretations. The standard is eftectwe f01 annual periods beginning on

or after [ January 2019, and earlier ﬂpphcatlou is permitted, subject to EU endorsement and the entxty adoptmg IFRS 15,
‘Revenue from contracts \\’lth customers’, at the same lune .

The group is wmkmg towards the implementation of IFRS 16 on [ January 2019. Management are still rewewmg the
expected impact of the implementation of this irew standard. .

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

“The key estimates aﬁdjudgcments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements are in respect of

revenue recognition, impairment of trade receivables and recognition of deferred tax assets.

Revenue recognition - gas revenues measurement change.to accounting estimate :

The nature of the energy industry in the UK in which the Group operates is such that the Group's revenue recognition is
subject to a degree of estimation. Revenue for the supply of electricity and gas was previously recognised in a top down
basis using customer tariff rates and industry settlement data (specific to the Group) net of estimated supplies that are not
billable. The industry settlement data is the estimated quantity the industry system operator deems the individual suppliers,
including the Company, to have supplied. .

<

Revenue recognition - energy supplied but not yet measured

The quantities of the energy supplied to OVO customers but not measured and billed are calculated at the reporting date
based on consumption statistics and selling price estimates. Determination of the unbilled proportion of sales revenues at the
year-end is sensitive to the assumptions used to plcpale these statistics and estimates. '

Impairment of trade reccivables

Impairments against trade receivables are recognised where the loss is prabable. The Directors have based their assessment
of the level of impairment.on collection rates experienced by the Group to date. The estimates and assumptions used to
determine the level of provision will continue to be reviewed periodically and could lead to changes in the impairment
provision methodology which would impact the income statement in future years.

Deferred tax assets

" Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is considered more likely than not that the Group will make future taxable

profits against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised. Having assessed the level profits made by the Group since the
year end and forecasts of revenue and costs for the coming years, the directors believe it is probable that the Group will
generate sustainable profits and therefore a deferred tax asset has been recognised.
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4 Revenue

The analysis of the.groub's revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows: .
- ' 2017 2016

. : . £000 £000
Sale of gas and electricity ’ : © 726,110 664,989
Installation of smart meters ’ : . . 84,915 51,991
Sale of home and emergency cover. o . 13,123 : -
* Other revenue : o 9,427 ) -
‘ 833,575 - 716,980
5 " Other gains and losses
The analysis of the group's other gains and losses for the year is‘as follows:
. 2017 . 2016
' £000 . £000
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - .o - 38,246
6 Operating profit f
Aurrived at after charging/(crediting)” A
2017 2016
: . ‘ . . £000 £000
" Depreciation expense . ‘ ' 3,033 3,102
- Amortisation expensc L " ) 7,165 7,452
Impairment loss : ' . _ 5 173 -
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains : 3 3
Operating lease expense - property 4 C 2,038 . 1,485
7 _Net finance income/(costs) .
2017 2016
£000 '£000
" Finance income
Interest income on bank deposits ) - . 8 . 159
Tinance co.sts
Interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings . ) (1,568) o -
Net finance (costs)/income : : (1,560) 159
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8 Staff costs

" The -aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

2017 .. 2016

. . _ . £000 ¢ £000

Wages and salaries . . ’ : . 50,759 38,342

Social security costs : : . 4562 3,543

Pension costs, defined contribution scheme : 958 - 743

Share-based payment expenses ’ ' . 621 . 518
Other employee expense i : . . 473 . 499

‘ 57,373 43,645

The aggregate payroll costs included in the Company accounts during the year was £2,236,000 (2016: £1,850 000) mcludmg
pension costs of £39,000 (2016: £34,000).

" The monthly average numbex of persons employed by the group (including directors) during the year, analysed by category
was as follows:

2017 " 2016

. No. R No.
Administration and support . 323 © 209
Sales, marketing and distribution ) 940 889
‘ 1,263 1,098
9 Directors' remuneration

The directors' remuneration for the year was as follows: .

2017 2016
. . ) . £000 £000 .

Remuneration , ’ 1,265 - 1,019
Contributions paid to pension scheme . 21 . 19
1,286 ~ 1,038

The highest paid director in the year received remuneration of £409,000 (2016 - £341,000) and contributions to the pension
" scheme of £9,000 (2016 - £8,000). .
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10 Auditors' remuneration

Audit of the financial statements of subsxdlal ies of the company pursuant to
legislation

Other fees to auditors
Audit-related assurance services
Taxation compliance services
All other tax advisory services

Taxation

Tax charged/(credited) in the income statement

Current taxation

Total tax charge

-2016

2017
£000 £000
164 126
28 9
9] 27
37 -
156 . 36
2017 2016
*£000 £ 000
1,338 (1,754)

The tax on profit before tax for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporatign tax in the UK (2016 - lower than the

standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of (2016 - 20%). .

—

The differerices are reconciled below:

Profit before tax

Corporation tax at standard rate

Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductlble in deteunmmg
taxable profit (tax loss) .

" Losses surrendered payable by group company

Increase (decrease) in current tax from unrecognised temporary difference ﬁom

a prior period

Deferred tax expense (credit) from umecogmsed temporary dlffelence froma
prior period

UK Deferred tax expense (credit) relatmg to changes in tax rates or laws
Decrease from pre-acquisition of subsidiaries tax charge

Total tax charge/(credit)

Page-30°

2017 2016
£000 .£000
6,074 23,812
1,169 4,762
606 (7,346)

- 485

. 235

53 (117)
(143) 227
(347) -
1,338 < (1,754)
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11 Taxation (continued)

The main rate of UK corporation tax for the year to 31 March 2016 was 20%, dropping for the year to 31 March 2017 to
19%. :

At Budget 2016, the government announced a further reduction to the corporation tax main rate (for aJl"proﬁts- except. ring
fenced profits) for the year starting 1 April 2020, setting the rate at 17%. The deferred tax balance has been presented in

accordance with this rate.

Deferred tax

Group .
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
L Net deferred
- ’ Asset Liability - } tax
2017 ' - £000 £000 £ 000
: »'Acg_:elel"ated tax depreciation . 841 - : 841 .
Tax losses carry-forwards . . 12,498 - 12,498
Revaluation of intangible assets : i - (535T) (5,357)
Pension benefit obligations : - Sl -
13,339 (5,357) 7,982
Y :
Net deferred
: Asset Liability - tax
2016 ' . . . £000 £ 000 - £000
~Accelerated tax depreciation . . 666 - . 666
Tax losses carry-forwards 13,978 ’ - . 13,978
" .Revaluation of intangible assets - - : - - (514) “(514)
Pension benefit obligations t - . - .-
14,644 . (514) 14,130
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11 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax movement duriné the year:

. Recognised on . At
At1January  Recognised in business 31 December
2017 income  combinations 2017
. e . £000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation 666 175 C - 841
Tax losses carry-forwards . 13,978 (1,480) - 12,498
Revaluation of intangible assets (514) 631 (5,474) (5,357)
Pension benefit obligations . . - - - -
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 14,130 T (674) (5,474) 7,982
Deferred tax movement during the prior year:
: . At
At 1 January Recognised in 31 December
2016 income 2016
£000 -~ £000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation (788) 1,454 666
. Tax losses carry-forwards 13,081 . 897 . 13,978
Revaluation of intangible assets - (514) (514)
Pension benefit obligations 23 (23) - ~ -
12,316 1,814 14,130

Net tax assets/(liabilities)

Company .
The Company recognised no deferred tax balance in the year (2016: nil).
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Group’

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2016

Acquired through business
combinations

Additions

Disposals .

At 31 December 2016
Additions

Acquired through business
combinations

Disposals

At 31 December 2017

" Depreciation -

At | January 2016
Chérge for year
Eliminated on disposal
At 31 December 2016

Acquired through business
combinations

Charge for'the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 3l ﬁeéember 2017
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2017
At 31 December 2016

At | January 2016

Ovo Group Litd

Fixtunres, ﬁttiﬁgs

N

Leasehold - " and office -

property equipment Meter assets Total
£000 £000 ‘£ 000 £000
5,291 2,557 27,872 .35,720
- I - 171
977 T 1,561 7,323 9,861

. - (35,106) (35,106)
6,268 4,289 89 10,646
838 790 o . 1,628
19 31 - 392

- ' (25) - (25)
7,125- . 5427 89 12,641
1,964 1,430 1,869 5,263

1,777 1,007 320 3,104
- - 2,157) (2,157)
3,741 2,437 32 6,210
S 253 - 261
1,909 . 1,262 23 " 3,194

- S ) - (25)
5,658 3,927 55 9,640
1,467 1,500 34 3,001
2,527 1,852 57 4,436
3,327 1,127 26,003 30,457
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13 Intangible assets

Group .
" Internally
generated
 software . )
development  Other intangible
Goodwill costs assets ~ Total
£000 £000 : £000 £000

Cost or valuation . ) ' .
At 1 January 2016 . 4,588 14,263 . T 738 19,589 .
-Additions © - 7,576 - S 7,576 -
Acquired through business : e )
combinations A " 2,860 : 2873 - 5,733
Disposals Co-  (4,568) - (4,568) -
At 31 December 2016 . 7,448 20,144 738 28,330 .
Additions . : ) . 2,867 C - 2,867
Acquired through business . , ' . ' :
combinations 37,266 ) - 800 31,400 69,466
At 31 December 2017 44,714 ' 23,811 32,138 100,663
Amortisation . :
At 1 January 2016 . . - : " 6,255 © 165 6,420
Amoartisation charge : - 7,389 63 .- 7,452
Amortisation eliminated on disposals - - (4,568) . - ' (4,568)
At 3] December 2016 : - - 9,076 . 228 9,304
Amortisation charge. . 5,719 ' 2,143 7,862
Impairment . - 173 .- . 173
At 31 December 2017 ) L. . 14968 2,371 B 17,339
Carrying amount . o ' .
At 31 December 2017 . ’ 44,714 ] 8,843 29,767 83,324
At3IDecembe1: 2016 - ‘ 7,448 11,068 _ > 510 19,026
At1 January 2016 : 4,588 8,008 ’ 573 13,169

The ambfris_ation charge of £7,862,000 (2016: £7,452,000) is recogniséd in administrativé expenscs.
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

The carrying amount of internally developed soﬁwale supporting a supplier contract has been 1educed to its recoverable
amount through recognition of an meaument loss ,against Internally generated software development costs. This loss has
been included in administrative expenses in:the income statement. :

There was no further indication of impairment of the geodwill, trademark or industry accreditation during the year. The

_carrying amount of the trademark-and industry accreditation were reviewed at the reporting date and management

determined that there were no mdlcatons of impairment. The annual test for impairment was undertaken using discounted
cash flow forecasts.

Goodwill, trademarks and industry accreditation are regarded by management to have an indefinite life as there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group and circumstances
continue to support the assessment that the useful life is indefinite. Trademarks relate to the brand of the Ovo group of
companies and are expected to be valid for the life of the companies, which operate in an industry with stable market

.demand. Industry accreditation is required for the Group to operate in the electricity and gas supply industry.

14 Inv'estments

Group subsndlal jes

Details of the group sub31d1m1es as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: .
Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiary . Principal activity Registered office ' and voting rights held
. 2017 '2016
Ovo Energy Ltd* * Sale of electricity and gas 1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,  100% T 100%

to customers in the UK BS1 6ED, UK-

-

Ovo Electricity Ltd . . Procurement and sale of 1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, 100% 100%
UK electricity from the BS16ED, UK . '
wholesale markets and
renewable sources

Ovo Gas Ltd - Supply of gas and UK I Rivergate; Temple Quay, Bristol,  100% 100%

related services BS1 6ED, UK
ONI Energy Ltd* Dormant ) Murray House, Murray, Street, 100% .° 100%
’ Belfast, Northern heland BTI
6DN, UK
ONI Electricity Ltd Dormant ' Murray House, Murray. Street, 100% 100%.
: : Belfast, Northern Ireland, BTIL :
/ 6DN, UK
ONIGasLtd - Dormant ' Murray -Houée, Murray  Street,  100% 100%
‘ Belfast, Northern Treland, BTI .
6DN, UK i
In Home Technology Ltd** Smart meter installation 1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,  100% 100%
business A BS16ED, UK
Smart Meter Finance Ltd*¥* Dormant 1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, 100% 100%
. : BS1 6ED, UK
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14 Investments (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Principal activity

Registered office

Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11
8NX, UK .

- UK

Praportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights held

2017 2016
Ovo Technology Ltd* Product development and I Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, ~ 100% 100%
provision  of  trading BS16ED, UK \
services . )
" VCharge Inc Development and USA  100% 100%
' provision of demand side . o :
grid balancing services
VCharge UK Ltd Development and 1 Masterton Park, South’ Castle  100% 100%
provision of demand side.Drive, Dunfermline, Scotland, -
grid balancing services. KY11 8NX, UK .
" VCharge Trading Ltd =~ Dormant 15 Atholl Crescent, 4Edinburgh, - 100% . 100%
' Scotland, EH3 8IHA, UK . .
Lilibet Holdings Ltd* Holding company 1 Rivergate A.Temple Qua)", Bristol, IOb% 0%
: : . England, BS1 6ED, UK ) . :
Lilibet Finance Ltd Holding company 1 Rivergate Temple Quay, Bristol, ' 100% 0%
England, BS1 6ED, UK . .
CLCB Holdings Ltd Holding company 1 Masterton Park, South ‘Castle  100% 0%
Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11
8NX, UK )
Corgi Homeplan Ltd Provider of boiler and 1 Masterton Park, South Castle 100% 0%
home care cover Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11 .
< 8NX, UK
Corgi Homeheat Ltd . Installation of boilers’ "1 Masterton Park, South Castle 100% 0%
s Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11"
8NX, UK . ‘
Hybrid Energy' Solutions Electric * Vehicle' clharge Unit ib Silver House Adeiphi 51% 0%
Ltd point installers Way, Ireland Industrial Estate,
. Staveley, Chesterfield, Derbyshire,
England, S43 3LJ, UK
Homeplan Ltd Dormant | Masterton Park, South Castle -100% 0%

-* indicates direct investment of the coinpauy

On the 20 June 2017, Ovo Technology Ltd, a sut;sidialy, acquired 24.9% of Indra Renewables Techinologies Ltd as an equity
investment. . : .
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14 Investments (continued) -

Summarj of the company investments :
31 December 31 December

o . 2017 2016
. _ A £000 £000
Investments in subsidiaries : - 86,334 85,716
Subsidiaries o o C - £000
Cost - . . o
‘At 1 January 2016 . : . : - 85,198
Additions o ' o : 518
At 31 December 2016 ) : - 85,716
Additions . o 618

At'31 December 2017 4 : 86,334

15 Acqmsmon ofsubsndlaly

On 5 -May 2017, the group acquired 100% of the issued share capltal of CLCB Holdings Ltd obtaining control. The
principal activity. of CLCB Holdings Ltd is a provider of boiler and home care cover. CLCB Holdings Ltd ‘was acquired so
that as a result of the acquisition, the group is expected to dnvenslfy into the boiler and home care cover market

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habllltles_assumed are as set out in the table below:

¢ ' 31 December

2017
. £000 -
Assets and liabilities acquired )

. Financial assets Coe ’ 8,009
Property, plant and equipment . co 129
Identifiable intangible assets ) , , 32,200
Financial liabilities ’ , (8,480)
Total identifiable assets , ) .o ) ' ) 31,858
Goodwill o : : 36,872
Total consideration : _ 68,730
Sgtisﬁed by: . .o
Cash ‘ : ' R 59,730 .
Other to ) : . ) 9,000
Total consideration transferred -~ - . 68,730
Cash flow analysis: ' ‘

Cash consideration _ - 59,730

The fair value of the fmanclal assets includes receivables with a fair value of £2,216, 000 and a gross contractual value of
£2,216,000.

- The goodwill of £36,872,000 arising from the acquisition consists of the knowledge and workforce acquired and other non

identifiable assets. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
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15 Acquisition of subsidiary (continued)'

Intangible assets of £32,200,000 Were-récdgnised on acquisition of CLCB Holdings Ltd. This comprises of:

+ £800,000 of IT Software ’

+ £5,500,000 for the Corgi trade name

+ £19,800,000 for existing' customer relationships”

+ £6,100,000 for the engineer network that CLCB Holdmgs has in place

A deferred consideration of £5,000,000 was 1ecogmsed at the acquisition date which is due over the- next two years.

On 10 April 2017, the group acquired 51% of the issucd share capital of Hybrid Energy Solutions Ltd, obtaining control. The
principal activity of Hybrid Energy Solutions Ltd is an installer of electric vehicle charge points. Hybrid Energy Solutions
Ltd was acquired so that as a result of the acqu1smon the group is expected to d1vers1fy into the electric vehlcle charge point
installation market

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:

31 December

2017

£000
Assets and liabilities acquired . ) ‘
Financial assets - ‘ . : : 100
Property, plant and equipment ’ ‘ : 2
Identifiable intangible assets o ' : 5
Financial liabilities . o ’ . : ) : (251)
Total identifiable assets - : - ' - (144)
Goodwill ) o ~ 394
Total consideration i S : K 250
Satisfied by: ' . e )
Cash . B o o oo 250
Cash flow analysis: ) »
Cash consideration ) . 250

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fau value of £54,000 and a gross contractual value of
£54,000. -

The goodwill of £394,000 arising from the acquisition consists of the knowledge and workforce acquired and other non
identifiable assets. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

r

" Page 38~




Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

16 Inventories

Finished goods and goods for. resale

" Group . Company
- 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
- £000 £000 £000 o £000

7,325 4,702 : - -

The cost of ROC's 1ecogmsed as an expense in the year amounted to £50 063, 000 (2016 - £40,229,000). This is mcluded

within cost of sales.

17 Trade and otlier reccivables

Trade receivables and accrued
income

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income

Net trade receivables
Receivables from related 'parﬁes
Prepayments -

Other receivables

Group Company :
31 December 31 December 31 December. 31 December
2017 " 2016 2017 . 2016
£ 000 £000 . £000 -£000
92,410 73,857 ' - -
(40,286) (24,397) - : .
52,124 . 49,460 - - -
167 2,488 56,003 ] 18,837
4,833 N 2,617 N 74 : - -
. 11,849 © 3,229 156 98
68,973 57,794 . - 56,233 18,935

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial instrument loans and receivables are disclosed in

.the financial instruments note.

The group's exposure to credit and market risks, including impairments and allowances for credit losses, relating to trade and
other receivables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

The: Shell commodity purchasing arfangement gives rise to a variable liability to Shell which is a combination of accounts
payable and future purchase commitments secured on the cash and debtors of Ovo Energy Ltd.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

Group : Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 - 2017 2016
£000 £000 ) .. £000 £ 000
78,177 ' 66,930 2,310 . 5,800
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19 Trade and other payables

Group N Company
31 December 31 December ~ 31December 31 December
2017 2016 o2017 : 2016
o _ . £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables ) ' 57,007 - 32,541 : 11 . -
Accrued expenses 81,227 62,344 : 306 29
Amounts due to related parties ] 1,282 2,894 32,661 -
Social security and other taxes ‘ 1,242 - ‘ 377 - -
Other payables R 1,188 - 45 : -
’ 141,946 . 97,779 : 33,060 - 29

The fair value of the trade and other payables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial instruments
note

Thc group's exposure to market and lquIdlty risks, including maturity analy31s, 1elated ‘to tradé and other payables is
disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

20 Share capital and reserves \

Allotted, called up‘ and fully paid shares

31 December ) 31 December
2017 2016
Na. £ No. ‘ £

A Ordinary of £0.00001 each ‘ 11,549,110 - 115 11,549,110 s
B Ordinary of £0.00001 each 84,808 1 91,345 1
C Ordinary of £0.00001 each 82,756 1 76,416 1
D1 Ordinary of £0.00001 each © 732,597 7 733,107 7
D2 Ordinary of £0.00001 each S 131,022 1 131,470 2
D3 Ordinary of £0.00001 each - : 259,656 3 259,656 3
D4 Ordinary of £0.00001 each . . - 149,854 L 198,174 2
DS Ordinary of £0.00001 each 572,241 6 233,904 2
El Ordinary of £0.00001 each 119307 . ¢ 1 - -
Preferred Shares of £0.00001 each - © 2,424,771 24 2,424,771 ' 24
Deferred Shares of £0.00001 each ' 447,689 4 380,954 4

16,553,811 : 166 16,078,907 161

The B,C, D and E shares have been issued as part of Employee Share Schemes as discussed in Note 23.
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20 Share capital and reserves (cc')ntin.ued) .
Nature and purpose of reserves
Share-based payments

The share-based payments reserve is-used to recognise the value of equity- scttled share- based payments provided to
employees, ulcludmg key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 24 for further details of these

" plans.

All other reserves are as stated in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

21  Loans and borrowings

Group Company
31 Decembe) " 31 December 31 December. 31 December
©2017 2016 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current loans and borrowings . .
Bank borrowings ) 32,949 - - . -
Other borrowings - 101 - - -
32,949 101 - ) -
Group ' ' Company
31 December ] 31 December 31 December . 31 December
2017 - 2016 2017 - . . 2016
£000 £000 £ 000 - £000
Current loans and borrowings ’
Bank borrowings 50 ) - - -

" Group

Bank borrowings :

The loan taken by Lilibet Fmaﬂce Ltd with HSBC and Investec during the year is denommated in GBP with a nominal
interest rate of 5.65%, and with the ﬁnal instalment due on 28 February 2023. The camrying amount at year end is
£32,949,000 (2016 - £Nil).

The loans and borrowings classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial instruments note.

The group's exposure to market and liquidity risk; including maturity analysis, in respect of loans and borrowings is;
disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note. ’ .

22 Obligation§ under leases and hire purchase contracts

’

Group

Operating leases
The Group leases five office premises, in Bristol, Dunfenmlme and London under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The lease terms are between 2 and 3 years. Lease rentals are included in the income statement.

The total future value of minimum lease payments is as foliows:
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22 Obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts (continued) .
' 31 December 31 December

« . 2017 . 2006

. . C . £000 £000

Within one year S ' 2,348 - 1,823
In two to five years ' ) 7,443 9,318
' ‘ 9,791 11,141

The amount of non-cancellable opetatmg lease payments recognised as an expeuse during the year was £2,021,195 (2016 -
£1,485,000)

23 Pension and other schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme : : -

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents contributions

payable by the group to the scheme and amounted to £958,000 (2016 - £743 000)

24 Share-based payments
Ovo Group Ltd Share Scheme

Scheme details and movements

In July 2014, Ovo Group Ltd established a new employee share 'plan. Under the terms of the scheme, Ovo Group Lid -

awarded its own employees and employees of Ovo Energy Ltd class B, C, D and E ordinary shares in Ovo Group Litd.

B shares (Employee Shareholder Scheme') are free shares awarded to employees in line with the UK government's erhployee
shareholder status rules. They have a tluee year vesting peuod

Employees are given the option to purchase C shares from thcu bonus. They have a one-year vesting period.
D shares are also awarded ds part of the LTIP scheme. These shares have been 1ssued in tranches, (2016 called D5 and D6)),
to reflect the valuation of the company at the date of thc award. They-have a vesting period based on performance

conditions.

E shares are also awarded as part of the LTIP scheme. These shares have been issued in tranches (called E1 in 2017 (2016:
none)), to reflect the valuation of the company at the date of the awand They have a vesting period based on performance

’ condltlons

The scheme 'is equity settled and a fair value liability was calculated on grant date. The expense is charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the expected vesting period of the awards.
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24 Share-based payments (continued) |

Analysis of charge to the conselidated income statement

Weighted average-vesting period (months)

£000 é(]l7 2016
'B’ Shares 186 201
'C' Shares " - - '
D' Shares 435 . 317
‘E' Shares - -
621 518
Reconciliation of}ﬁo;/ements in awards
Thousands of shares B'Shares  'C' Shares B Sl-lares 'E' Shares
Issued at 1 January 2017 91 ' 76 1,556 -
Issued June 2017 10 5 298 -
Issued September 2017 17 5 - 100
Issued December 20“17 5 .- - 12
Cancelled (38) @) - ©) -
Issued at 31 bccembcr 2017 8s. 83 1,845 119
Weighted a‘veraAgc vesting period (months) 26 10 - 33
Thousands of shares . ‘B' Shares 'C' Shares . 'D' Shares
Issued at 1 January 2016 94 A'7_1 1,474
' Issued May 2016 9 6 w2
 Issued October 2016 - 5 -
Ca;lcel[ed (12) 6) (160).
Issued at 31 December 2016, 91 76 1,556
24 8 25
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" 24 Share-based payments (continued)

Pricin'g

For the purpose of valuing the awards, to calculate the share-based payment charge all shares issued were valued based on an
observable market multiples of competitors, discounted cash flow and where available transaction data.

'B' Shares

The ‘B' Shares awarded in May 2016 were valued at £12. 10 per-share and October 2016 shares were valued at £12.10 per
share. The ‘B' Shares awarded in June 2017 were valued at £12.10 per share, Septembe1 2017 shares were valued at £15.30
per shme and December 2017 shares were valued at £15.30 per share.

'C' Shares

The 'C' Shares awalded in May 2016 were valued at £13. 40 per share and October 2016 shares were valued at £13. 40 per
share. The 'C' Shares awarded in June 2017 were va]ued at £17.00 per share and September 2017 shares were valued at
£17.00 per share.

‘D' Shares

The 'D' Shares awarded in May 2016 were valued at £0. 28 per share and October 2016 shares were valued at £0:28 per share.
The 'D' Shares awarded in June 2017 were valued at £0 31 per share and Septembel 2017 shares were valued at £0.31 per
share.

'E' Shares )
The ‘E' Shm‘es‘ awarded in 2017 had no market value.

Provisions
Group .
Dilapidation
provisions Total
£000 . £000
At 1 January 2017 : 551 551
Increase in existing provisions - . 189 189
"At 31 December 2017 ' 740 . 740
Current liabilities - 740 740

26 Contingent liabilities

Group : . N » , .
Ofgem has launched an investigation into OVOQ's estimation of customers' energy usage during winter 2016-17' and the

. general accuracy of its annual consumption figures in customers' annual statements. This investigation was launched in

February 2018 and Ofgem has led OVO to believe that it may take.over a year to complete. OVO has recently completed the
first round of information requests and is waiting to hear further from Ofgem. OVO anticipates that if it is found to be at
fault then the remedy will most likely be a financial penalty. OVO does not anticipate this investigation impacting its ability
to supply energy or grow its customer base in any way .
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27 Financial instruments

Group

Financial assets
Loans and receivables -

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Valuation methods and assumptions

Loans and receivables:

* The fair value of loans and receivable is based on the expectal

v

Ovo Group Ltd

Carrying value

31 December 31 December

Notes to the Finahcial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Fair value

31‘Decembe|: 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 . £000 £000
78,177 66,930 18,177 66,930
68,973 57,794 68,973 57,794
147,150 124,724 147,150

receivables mainly relate to customers from whom it is unlikely that full payment will ever be received.
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities A ’ ‘
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 Décember . 31 December

2017 2016 2017 . - 2016
£ 000 £000 £000 _£000
-Trade and.o;hef payables . 141,946 97,779 ) 141,946 97,779
Borrowings 32,999 - © 32,999 -

174,945 . 97,779 174,945 97,779

Valuation methods and assunw(iank

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair value of the trade and other payables .and borrowings is éstimated as the present value of future cash flows,

discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material. Due to the short maturities, the fair
value of the trade'and other payables approximates to their book value. The finance lease was enteled into close to the
balance sheet date and therefore book value approximates fair value. .

Company

Financial assets
Loans and receivables |

Carrying value Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2017 2016 . 2017 . 2016
£.000 £000 - ' £000 £ 000
Cash and cash equivalents . 2,é 10 5,800 2,310 5,800
Trade and other receivables 56,233 18,935 . . 56,233 18,935 -
' oo 58,543 - 24,735 58,543 24,735
Valuation methods and assumptions -

Loans and receivables:
The fair value of loans and receivable is based on the expectation of recovery of balances. There have been no historic
defaults over the other receivables balance, therefore the full balance is expected to be received.
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27 Financial instruments-(continued)

Financial liabilitics
" Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value

31December  31December 31 December 31 December:

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables ' , . 33,060 . 20 - . 33,060 29
Borrowings ’ ) ’ - 101 - 101
: : 33,060 130 , 33,060 130

Valuation methods and assumptions

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair value of trade and other payables is estimated as S the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate

. of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material. Due to their short maturities, the fair value of the trade and other’
payables appxoxunates to their book value. :

28 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets

Group

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of ﬁnanclal risks: market risk (predominantly from commedity price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Gxoups overall risk management programnie focuses on the unpredictability of commodlt)' price
markets and seeks to minimise potentlal adverse affects on the Gloup s financial performance. .

Risk management is carried out by the Risk management committee, under po]icles approved by the Board and the Group
management team. '

C!edlt risk and lmpanment

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Gmup if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and avises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers, from security deposits and
prepayments to suppliers and distributors and deposits with the Group's bank.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. Therefore, the maximum exposure to credit
risk at the balance sheet date was £154,892,000 (2016: £124,724,000) being the total -of the carrying amount of financial
assets, excluding equity investments, which include trade receivables and acclued mcome, derivative ﬁnancml assets and
cash. All the receivables are with parties in the UK.

The allowance account of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery
of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered irrecoverable are written off against the trade
receivables directly. There were no transactions written off in the year. The Group provides for impaiunent losses based on
estimated lirecoverable amounts determined by reference to specxﬂc circumstances and the expeuence of management of
debtor default in the energy industry.

Page 47




Ovo Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Decémber 201_7

28 Financial risk management and impairment of financiat asscts (continued)

Past due and impaired Aﬁnaﬁcial assets

Allowances for impairment by credit losses

2017
At start of year
" Additional impairment for credit losses

‘Atend of year : S

2016
At start of year .
Additional impairment for credit losses

Atend of year

Analysis of items past due or impaired
Loans and receivables
Ao
Carrying value o
of items neither Carrying value Carrying value
past due nor of items past due of items past due

Pre impairment

Loans and

receivables
£000 .
24,397

15,889

40,286

Loans and’
receivables
£000
11,886
12,511

24,397

Impairment
recognised to

2017 : impaired but not impaired and/or impaired value’ date
£000 £000 £ 000 - £000 £ 000

Loans and receivables o 18,519 20,901 40,286 7,953 40,286

Cy ' ‘ ) 7 -
Carrying value

of items neither Carrying value - Carrying value Impairment
past due nor of items past due of items past due Pre impairment recognised to
2016 : impaired but not impaired and/or impaired value date
: £000 £000 . £ 000 £000 £000

- Loans and receivables 16,831 - 16,836 24,397 58,065 24,397

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither due or impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates, The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers from whom it is unlikely

that full payment will be received.
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28 Financial risk manage‘hlcnt and impairment of financial assets (continued)

Market risk
Commodity price risk

Commodity risk is the exposure that the Group has to pricc movements in the wholesale gas and electricity markets. The risk
is primarily that market prices for commodities will fluctuate between the time that tariffs are set and the time at which the
corresponding procurement cost is fixed; this may result in lower than expected margins or unprofitable sales. The Group is
also exposed to volumetric risk in the form of uncertain consumption profiles arising from a range of factors which include
weather, économic climate and changes in energy consumption patterns.

The Gloup s exposure fo commodity risk is managed through the use of derivative ﬁnanc1al instruments. The Group does not

use derivatives and other financial instruments for speculanve purposes.

Derivatives are measured at fair value on the contract date-and are re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in the fair value of derjvatives and other financial instruments are recognised-in the income statement as they arise.
Unrealised net losses on open contracts at the year end were £nil (2016: £nil).

The Group manages this risk by entering into forward contracts for a variety of periods. Energy procurement contracts are
entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt of a non-financial item which is in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase and sale requirements and ate therefore out of scope of IAS 39. Energy contracts that are not
financial instruments under IAS 39 are accounted for as executory contracts and changes in fair value do not immediately
impact profit or equity, and as such, are not exposed to commodity price risk as defined by IFRS 7.-So whilst the risk
associated with energy procurement contracts outside the scope of IAS 39 is monitored for internal risk management
purposes, only those cnergy contracts within the scope of TAS 39 are within the scope of the IFRS 7 disclosure requirements..

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the usk that the Gxoup will not be able to meet its financial obhgatlons as they fall due. N

The Group ma_nagement team uses short and )ong-term cash flow ‘forecasts to manage liquidity risk. Forecasts are

- supplemented by sensitivity. analysis which is used to assess funding adequacy for at least a 12 month period.

The biggest threat to the Group's liquidity would arise froni unusually cold weather or other factors causing customer
volumes to be much higher than anticipated. This could place a strain on the Group's working capital as payments due to
supplier invoices could bccome due before customer collection levels could be adjusted. . '

¢

The Group manages its cash resources to ensure it has sufficient funds to meet “all expected demands-as they fall due.

Maturity énalysis

. : : Within 1 year After 1 year o Total
2017 ) B : £000 £000 ) £000
Trade and other payables i 141,946 L. 141,946

. Bank borrowings . ~ 50 32,949 32,999

141,996 - 32049 174,945

. ) ) Witﬁin_ 1 year . After1 yeél- ] . Total .
2016 ‘ . £000 £000. £000
Trade and other payables ’ , ) . 971,779 - 97,779
Other bouowmgs . , - ' 101 101
' 97,779 101 97,880
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28 Financial risk management and i.m[')airment of financial assets (continued)

Capital risk management !

Capital management

Capital risk is managed to ensure the Group continues as a going concern and grows in a sustainable manner.

The Group maintains a consolidated financial model to monitor the development of the Group's capital structure, which has
the ability to model various scenarios and sensitivities. Key outputs from this model are regularly presented to the board.

29 Related party transactions
Key management personnel .
Key management includes directors and members of the Group management team. The compensation paid or payable to key

management for employee services to Ovo Energy Ltd is shown below.

. Key mana'gement'compensavtion

31 December 31 December

2017 . 2016

: . £000 £000
Sa]aries and other short term employee benefits 1,286 . 2,285

Summm'y of transactions with key management
Two Directors of the Company directly control 10% of the votmg shares of the Company, Stephen Fitzpatr 1ck also owns
100% of the share capital of Imagination Industries Ltd, which owns a further 65% of the Company's shares.
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29 Related party transactions (contihucd)

Company
Summary of transactions with subsidiaries

During the year, In Home Technology Ltd provided loan funds to the Company of £31,145,000. The loan incurred an
interest charge on the capital bajance in the current year of 7% (2016 10%); the total interest paid in the current year was
£1,337,000 (2016 received: £80,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Company owed £32,482,000 to In Home Technology

Ltd (2016: nil).

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to Ovo Energy Ltd of £1,819,000 (2016 £4,400 000) The loan incurred
an interest charge on the capital balauce of 7% (2016: 10%); the total interest received in the year was £1,218,000 (2016:
£1,465,000). As at 31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £19,587,000 (2016:°£16,433,000).

"+ During the year, the Company charged management charges to Ovo Energy Ltd for the provision of Management pensonnel

of £2,018,693 (2016: £2,036,000). The costs are included in the balance outstanding above,

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to Corgi Homeplan Ltd of £1,175,000 (2016 nil). The loan incurred an )
interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2016: n/a); the total interest received in the year was £33,000 (2016: nil). As at

* 31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £1,207,000 (2016: nil).

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to Lilibet Holdings Ltd of £27,800,000 (2016: nil). The loan incurred an
interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2016: n/a); the total interest received in the year was £1,297,000 (2016: nil). As
at 31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £29,097,000 (2016: nil).

During the yezu‘ the Company provided loan funds t6 Ovo Technology Ltd of £3,796,000 (2016: nil). The loan incurred an
interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2016: n/a); the total interest received in the year was £182,000 (2016: nil). As at
31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £3,798, 000 (2016: nil)..

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to V Charge Inc. of £676, 000 (2016: 213,000). The loan incurred an
interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2016: 10%); the total interest received in the year was £41,000 (2016: nil). As
at 31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £930,000 (2016: 213,000).

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to V Charge UK Litd. of £785, 000 (2016: 158 ,000). The loan incwrred an

interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2016: 10%); the total interest received in the year was £41, 000 (2016: nil). As
at 31 December 2017, the total balance outstanding was £930,000 (2016: 213,000). '

30 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The ultimate parent is Imagination Industries Ltd.

The most senior pm'ent edtity. producing publicly available financial statements is Imagination Industries Ltd. These financial
statements are available upon request from from the registered.office shown in note 1. .

The ultimate controlling party is Stephen Fitzpatrick.
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